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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Bower=Cox House is a frame structure with weatherboard -sheathing. It has
a "T" plan formed by two, two=story blocks of almost equal size, constructed at dif-
ferent times. The ca. 1820 late Federal south block has a one-story shed-roof porch
across the full length of the south elevation. The later ell, behind this block, has
a one-story shed-roof porch across the east elevation and a two-story porch across its
west elevation which is now regarded as the "front" of the house.

The south block has a gable roof finished with a box cornice and tapering rake
boards. On the south elevation, a one-story, shed-roof porch protects flush sheathing
in which is set a window containing six~over-six sash. The door to the east of the
window has been removed and the opening is now sheathed over. The porch, replaced
about 1930, is supported by four posts, square-in-gection, which rest on cement caps
above rock piers, also square-in-gection. The second level has a two=bay division with
one window original to the south block containing nine-over-nine sash and a replace-
ment window containing sizx-over-six sash.

An exterior brick flue constructed in common bond on the foundations of an earlier
chimney rises at the east gable end. A very fine exterior single-shoulder chimney of
brick laid in Flemish bond stands at the west gable end. It is flanked by windows
containing six-over-six sash on the first level and windows containing nine-over-six
sash on the second level. The window surrounds vary throughout the house. Those
around the windows of nine-over-six sash have plain surrounds with a molded back band.
The surrounds on the later windows of six—over-six sash are plain unmolded boards.

The north elevation of the early section is covered by the lakter, ca. 1870-75,
ell. The west elevation of the ell has a three-bay division on both levels and is
fronted by a two-story porch four bays wide. The first level of the porch is sup-
ported by short unfluted columns which rest on cement capped rock piers, square-in-
section, which were installed about 1930. The second level of the porch is supported
by posts, square~in-section, with a balustrade of simple balusters, also square-in-
section, under an unmolded hand rail. The paired gable roofs (which cover the ell),
are arranged transversely, and each extends over the four bays of the porch, Their
pented fronts are clad in weatherboards and contain rectangular ventilators. The roof

The windows behind the porch contain siz-over—

ents are covered with wood shingles.
P
The door

six sash and are set in molded architraves which curve outward at the top.
surrounds vary, but those on the first bay (immediately behind the earlier block),
on both levels have modeled lintels with curved tops while the door in the northern
bay of the second level has a plain surround with a molded back band.

The west elevation of the ell has a single window containing six-over-six sash
at both levels. A one-story shed-roof porch carries across the full length of the
east elevation of the ell; the northern end has been enclosed.

The interior of the original block follows a hall-and-parlor plan and is primarily
Federal in character, though the existing first floor partition appears to be a latex
No clear evidence remains as to the placement of the stair in this

reolacemant.
second floor may have been reached by a rear exterior stair similar to that

section; the
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of the nearby McMillan House of a slightly later period. The Gresk Revival character
of the second floor doors to the present stair hall bears out this supposition.

The mantel of the west parlor probably dates from the period of the Victorian
addition; a narrow shelf rests on square end blocks supported in turn by flat, narrow
pilasters flanking the fire opening. A raised triangular block with stepped and molded
edges, a motif similar to other later nineteenth century mantel ormamentation in the
area, is attached under the shelf at the center. The mantel of the smaller east room
has been removed, and a twentieth century bathroom has been installed on the north side
of the room. Walls of both roomg, with exception of the newexr partitions, retain their
original wide flush sheathing.

The interior space of the Victorian addition extends northward in a limear fashion
with a stair hall and two rooms running south to north., The stair hall joins the west
parlor of the original block with a six-~panel Federal door which was the original
exterior rear door of the late Federal section. The open~string staiv rises to the
east along the sgouth wall to a landing, and completes the ascent with a short reverse
flight to the second floor hall. The newel, square-in-section, has a neck molding
and a simple molded cap. Balusters, square-in-section, support the molded handrail.

-~ The door—to the second floor east room of the original block is reached by three
steps rising off the landing. This door has two vertical raised panels. The mantel
in the east room is the only remaining original one; it consists of plain pilasters
flanking a square fire opening surmcunted by two flat panels trimmed with a delicate
applied molding. The shallow shelf is supported by small, sguare, molded brackets
at the ends and in the center. ' :

The door in the second floor interior partition is unusual: it is composed of
four panels, a horizontal panel at the top and bottom with two vertical panels between.
The panels are raised with a thin applied molding on the same side as the bevel. This
door no longer reaches the west room, as a new partition extends across that room,
forming a long narrow closet. The west room hasg been completely rafinished in sheet
rock, and its mantel removed. The door Jjoining it to the staivr hall has three narrow

vertical raised panels.

The second floor interior of the Victorian wing follows the linear arrangement
and plain finish of the first, with machine made doors set in plain board architraves.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bower-Cox House belonged to two of Ashe County's most prominent citizens of
the nineteenth century and like other houses it has enjoyed additions and alterations
to the original fabric by a series of owners. George Bower was prominent in both
political and commercial circles and had extensive land holdings4throughout the county.
He erected the Federal—style section of this house around 1820. In 1852, he sold the
house and adjacent property to Dr. Aras B. Cox, who wrote a history of the settlement
of the area, a running monologue on the most prominent families, Footprints in the
Sands of Time. Dr. Cox added the wing to the rear of the Bower house, after the Civil
War, expanding the house to its present proportions.

Probably sometime around 1820 George Bower built a house on the South Fork of the
New River near Silas Branch in Ashe County. Between 1800 and 1820 he purchased several
large amounts of land on the South Fork. But because these purchases involved numerous
transactions, and since contemporary landmarks are now ocbscure, it is not possible to
determine from whom Bower obtained the property on which he erected his house.

George Bower was an influential resident of Ashe County in the early nineteenth
century. In 1807 he was constable of the Ashe County Court. He also served in the
North Carolina Senate from 1812 to 1817, longer than any other state senator from Ashe
County. Besides his role in public service, Bower was a successful farmer and business-—
man who, in addition to his South Fork farm house, built an imposing brick house (1828~
1850) which still stands on Main Street in Jefferson. He ran his farm with the labor
of thirty-three slaves, and according to local tradition, he drowned in the Yadkin

River in 1861 while pursuing one of his runaway chattels.

In 1852 Bower had sold to Aras B. Cox "a certain parcel of land lying and being in
the County of Ashe . . . on the waters of the South Fork . . . of New River on Silas
Branch . . . estimated at four hundred acres."? Evidently this conveyance included the

Bowexr House.

Dr. Aras B. Cox was a locally prominent physician who served as Clerk of Superior
Court in 1849 and 1853. Ashe County citizens remember him as a leader in establishing
the Sutherland Methodist Church around 1856. His real and parsonal estate,; which in~
cluded the Bower=Cox House and eight slaves, was valued at 512,600 in 1860. Cox also
commanded a company of Confederate infantyy during the Civil War. 3

-
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The Ashe County records do not reveal when Aras B. Cox died or how he disposed
of his estate. But his granddaughter, Mrs. Ruth Cox Huft, who is still living,
testifies that he deeded his property on Silas Branch to his gon, Solomon V. Cox,
in the late nineteenth century. Mrs, Hufit, who married A, B, HuRt of Ashe County in
1917, also recalls that her father, Solomon V. Cox, deeded the Bower—Cox House tract
to her before his death in 1913. The house became the property of A. B. Hufit when he
and the former Ruth Cox married, but in his will, probated in 1961, Huft devised the
Bower=Cox place to his "bheloved wife, Ruth Cox Hulke, “%  Tn 1963 Mrs. Huﬁﬁ deeded the
Bower~Cox House and land to her son, A. B. Huflt, Jr., while "reserving a life estate"
in the property until her death, >

FOOTNOTES ¢

lArthur I,, FPletcher, Ashe County: A History (Jefferson: BAshe County Research
Association, Inc., 1963), pp. 88, 299; Eighth Census of the United States=, 1860:
Ashe County, North Carolina, Schedule 2, Slave Inhabitants, 5; R. D. W. Comner
(comp. and ed.) , & Manual of North Carolina . . . 1913 (Raleigh: North Carolina
Historical Commission, 1913}, p. 491.

2 ' . . )
Ashe County Deed Books, Office of the Register of Deeds, Ashe County Court-
house, Jefferson, Deed Book R: 12, hereinafter citad as Ashe Deed Books.

3Eighth Cenzus of the United States, 1860: Ashe County, North Carolina, Popu=-

lation Schedule, 496; Fletcher, Ashe County, pp. 89, 168; John W. Moore, ed., Rosgter
of North Carolina Troops in the War Between the States, Vol. ITI (Raleigh: Edwards,

Broughton and Company, 1882), 710,

4 . . o o .
Ashe County Record of Wills. Office of the Clerk of Superior Court, Ashe County
Courthouse, Will Book I: 127-28.

SAShe Deed Boolk H-4: 128.
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